UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA

U.§8, COMMODITY FUTURES TRADIN
COMMISSION, ‘

Plaintiff,
v, ' ' CASENO, 3:11-cv-23-RIC
KEITH F, SIMMONS, et al,,

Defendants, and
LAWRENCE SALAZAR, et al,,

Rellef Defendants,

CONSENT ORDER OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CXVIL
MONETARY PENALTY, AND OTHER EQUITABLYE RELIEF AGAINST
DEFENDANTS DEANNA SALAZAR, LIFE PLUS GROUP, LLC,
AND BLACK DIAMOND HOLPDINGS, LLC
1, BACKGROUND

On Janvary 13, 2011, Plaintiff U8, Commodity Futures Trading Commission
(“Commission” ot “CFTC") filed 8 Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civll Monetary
Penalties, and Other Equitable Relief (“Complaint™) against Defendants Deanna Salazar
(“Salazar”), Life Plus Group, LLC (“Life Plus™), and Black Diamond Holdings, LLC (*BD
Holdings™), among others, for violations of Sections 4b{a)(2)(A)«(C) of the Commodity
Exchange Act (“CEA” ar “Act”), 7 U.S.C, §§ 6b(a)}(2)(A)-(C) (2012),

On January 1§, 2011, the Court issued a Consent Statutory Restraining Order and Order

of Preliminary Injunction and Other Equitable Relief agalnst Salazar and Life Plus,

Case 3:11—cv—00023;RJC-DCK Document 112-1 Filed 12/02/14 Page 1 of 2%

Case 3:11-cv-00023-RJC-DCK Document 132 Filed 06/24/15 Page 1 of 22




On February 11, 2011, the Court issued a Statutory Restralning Order against BD
Holdings and on April 4, 2011, the Court issued an Order of Preliminary Injunction and Other
Equitable Relief agalnst BD Holdings.

IIL.  CONSENTS AND AGREEMENTS

To effect sa&lement of this action without a telal on t‘he metits or further judictal
proceedings, Salazar, Life Plus, and BD Holdings (“Seitling Defendants”):

1. Consent to the entry of this Consent Order of Permanent Injunction, Civl!
Monetary Penalty, and Other Equitable Relief Against Defendants Deanna Salazar, Life Plus
Grouy, LLC, and Black Diamond Holdings, LLC (*Consent Order™);

2 Affirm that Salazar and the authorized representatives of Life Plus and BD
‘Holdings have read and agreed to this Consent Order voluntarily, and that no promise, other than
as speoifically contained hereln, or threat, has been made by the Commisslon or any member,
officer, agent or representative thereof, o by any other person, o induce consent to this Consent
Order; ‘

3, Acknowledge service upon them of the summons and Complalnt;

4, Admit the jurisdiotion of the Court over them and the subject matter of this action
pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act, 7 U.8.C. § 13a-1 (2012);

5. Admit the jurisdiction of the Commission over the conduct and transactions at
jssue in this action pursuant to Section 6c of ‘fhe Act, 7U.S.C, §13a-1 (2012), and Section
20)2)(C) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(e)(2)(C) (201-2);

6, Admit that venue properly lies with this Conrt pursuant to Section 6¢(e) of the -

Act, 7 U.S.C. §13a-1(e) (2012);

7. Walve:
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2, any and all claims that they may possess under the Equal Access to Justice
Act, 5U.S.C. § 504 (2012) and 28 U.S,C, § 2412 (2012), and/or the rules promulgated by the
Commission in conformity therewith, Part 148 of the Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §§148.1, ¢f seq.
(2013), relating to, or avising from this action;

b. any and all clalms that they may possess under the Smafl Business
Regulatory Enforoement Faimass Act of 1996, Pub, L, 104-121, §§ 201-253, 110 Stat, 847, 857~
868 (1996), ns amended by Pub, L, No. 110-28, § 8302, 121 Stat, 112, 204-205 (2007), relating
{o, or arising from this p]‘ocecding; |

¢, any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the institution of this action or
the entry in this action of any order imposing a civil monetary penalty or any other relief,
Including this Consent Orcier; and

d, any and all rights of appeal from this action;

8, Consent to the continued jurlsdiction of this Court over them fot the purposes of
implementing and enforolng the terms and conditions of this Consent Order and for any other
purpose relevant to this action, even if Salazar, Life Plus, or BD Holdings now or in the firture
reside or operate outslde the jurisdiction of this Court;

9, Agree that they will not opposé enforcement of this Consent Order on the grounds
that it falls to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedute and waive any
objectlon based thereon;

10, Agree that nelther they not any ofth.air agents or employees under their anthority
ot contrlol shall- take anty action or make any public statement denying, directly or indivectly, any
allegation in the Complaint or the Findings of Facf ot Conclusions of Law In this Consent Order,

or oreating or tending to create the Impression that the Complaint and/or this Consent Order is
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without'a factual basis; provided, however, that nothing in this provision shall affoct thelt: (a)
testimonial obligations, or (b) right to take legal positioﬁs in other proceedings fo which the
Commigsion is not a party. Settling Defendants shali undertake all steps necessary to ensure that
thelr agents and/or erpioyees under their authority or control understand and comply with this
agreement;

11, By consenting to the entry of this Consent O{der, neither admit nor deny the
~ allegations of the Complaint or the Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law in this Consent
Order, except as to jurisdiction and venue, which they admit. Further, Settling Defendants agree
and intend that the allegations contained in the Complaint and all of the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law contained in this Consent Order shall be taken as true and correct and be
given preclusive effect, without further proof, in: (a) any current or subsequent bankruptey
proceeding filed by, on behalf of, or against Settling Defendants; (b) any proceeding pursuant to
Section 8a of the Act, 7U.8,C. § 12a (2012), and/or Part 3 of the Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §§ 3.1
et seq. (2013); andfor {¢) any proceeding to enforce the terms of this Consent Order.

12,  Agree to provide immediate notice to this Court and the Com:ﬁission by certified
madl, in the manner required by Part VI of this Consent Order, of any bankrupicy proceeding
filed by, on behalf of, or against any of them whother inside or owtside the United States; and

13, Agreethat ﬁo pz'c;vision of this Consent Order shall in any way limit or impair the
ability of any other person ot entity fo seek any legal or equitable remedy against Settling
Defendarnts in any other proceeding,

I, FINDINGS OF FACT ANi) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
14, The Court, being fuify advised in the premises, finds that there is good cause for

the entry of this Consent Order and that there is no just reason for delay. The Court therefore
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directs the entry of the following Findings of Fact, Conolngions of Law, permanent injunction
and equitable relief pursuant to Séotion 6o of the Act, 7 U.8.C, § 13a-1 (2012), as set forth
hersin,

THE COURT HERERY FINDS:

A, FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Parties to this Consent Order

15, Plaintiff U,S, Commodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent
federal regulatory agency that Is charged by Congress with the administration and enforcement
of the Act, 7U.8.C. §§ 1 et seq. (2012), and the Reguolations promulgated thereunder, 17 C.F.R,
_ §8 1.1 et seq, (2013),

16,  Defendant Deanna Salazar is ourrently incarcerated at FCI Victorville Medium
1L, Victorville, California 92394, Salazar Is the owner/manager of Life Plus and, through Life
Plus, is the Manager of the joint venture BD Holdings, Salazar was registered with the CFTC as
an Ass;nciatad Person of various registered Introducing Brokers during the period of Febrnary
2005 through Match 2008,
| 17, Defendant Life Plus Group, LLC is a Limited Liability Company organized in
Wyon‘;ing and formed on July 7, 2007, Duting the relevant period here it was located at 56783
" Free Gold Drive, Yucca Valley, Californla 92284, and was owned by Salazar, Life Plus has not
been registered with the CETC in any capacity and is not & financlal institution, reg'istered
broker-dealer (or their associated person), insurance company, bank holding company or
investment bank holding company,

18. Defendant Black Diamond Holdings Is a Limited Liabilliy Company organized

in Wyoming and formed on November 15, 2007, Durlng the relevant périod here it was focated
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at 56783 Free Gold Drive, Yucca Valley, California 92284, BD Holdings is a joint venture in
which Simmons, Salazar and Coats, through their respective companies, are equal partnets,
Salazer, through her company Life Plus, is the Manager of BD Holdings. BD Holdings has
never been registered with the CFTC in any capacity and is not a finaneial institution, registered
broker dealer (or their associated petson), insurance company, bank holding company or
Investment bank helding company.

2, Settling Defendants Fraudulently Solicited Customers to Trade Forex
Through Black Diamond

19, From at least April 2007 through et least December 2009 (“relevant petiod”),
Salazar, Individual 1, Individual 2, and Individual 3, acting through various corporate entities,
fraudulently solicited and/or accepted af least $35 million from at least 240 customers for the
purported purpose of frading, via the Black Diamond trading platform, a pogled Investment in
connection with agreements, contracts, ot transactions in o'ff-exohange foteign cuirency

| (“forex™) that sre margined or leveraged.
| 20, At least certaln of these customers, if not ail, were Individuals who had total
assets of less than $5 miltion, |

21,  Individual | first solicited Salazar to invest in forex through Black Diamond
Capital Solutions, L.L.C. (“BDCS™) in April 2007, and subsequently entered into a joint venture
with Salazar whereby she, acting through her company Life Plus, would market forex trading
through BDCS to her customers, Individual 1 and Salazar would then split equally tﬁe joint
venture’s shate of profits achieved by any new customers brought to BDCS by Salazar.

22, Individual 1 and Salazar subsequently solicited Individual 2 to invest in forex
through BDCS tn Octaber 2007, and then entered inté a three-way joint venturc; with Indtyidual

2, whereby he, acting thtough his own corporate entity, would market forex trading through
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BDCS to his customers, Individual 1, Salazat, and Individual 2 would then split in equal thirds
the new joint ventul;a’s share of proﬁts achieved by any new customets brought to BDCS by
Individual 2,

23, According to the joint venture agreement, the joint venture was fo be conducted
under the name BDCS: but fater Individual 1, Satazar, and Individual 2 ochanged the name to
Black Diamond Holdings (“BD Holdings™), Regardless, Individual 1, Salazar, and Individual 2
continued to use the names BDCS, BD Holdings, and Black Diamond interchangeably in their
forex materials, solicltations, and communications with customers,

24, ' Individwal 1, Salazar, and Individual 2 jointly developed Black Diamond
solloitation materials and provided them to the persons and entities they solicited, The.Blaok
Diamond solicitation ilnateria]s used by Indlvidual 1, Salazar, and Individual 2 claimed that

- Black Diamond offered customers exclustve acooss fo an automatic computerized trading system
oreated by a group of sofiware developers to trade forex, that the system had been trading forex
for over 36 months, and that every month had exueeded'the target of four percent gain per
month, One version of the materials purported to show an actual three year trading history with

“consistently positive monthly returns, often in excess of ten percent, and a three year balance
reflecting results of $194,340,37 on an initial $5,000 investment,

25, The Black Diamond solicitation materials assured customers that the tisk of
trading forex through Black Dismond was limited because automatic stop loss mechanisms
would kick in should a customer’s account ever drop ten percent (or, in some latet versions,
twenty petcont) and would prevent any further trading Without specifio instructions from the

oustomer, T addition, the materials assured customors that Black Diamond had no right to
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deplete or withdraw customer funds at any time othe!" than for the purpose of engaging In actual
{rading.

26,  Toexpand the reach of the Black Diamond scheme even farther, Salazar entered
into “‘Co-Tacilitator Agreements” with certain of her customers, These agreements authorized
others, so-called “Facilitators,” to sollcit customers to trade forex through BDCS in exchange for
a marketing service foe, If a Facilitator successfully solicited a customer to trade through BDCS,
then Individual 1 and Salazar would further divide their portion of the customer’s trading profits
with the referring Facilitator, As a result of these Co-Facllitator agreements, the Black Diamond
fraudulent scheme was extended to numerous individuals/entities actross California, Colorado,
Texas, and other states.

27.  Inaddition to the Black Diamond solloitation material described above, Salazar,
directly or through her Facilitators, provided customers_ with a one-page trading agreement {o
sign, The trading agreement provided that customers would participate with both BDCS and
Life Plus in a forex trading acconnt held by BDCS at a third party brokerage, and provided fora
percentage split (usually ranging from 50/50 to 60/40) of net profits between the account holder
and Black Diamond/Life Plus, Salazar signed many, if not most, of these agteements as an
officer of Black Diamond and Life Plus, Many, if not most, of Salazar’s customers also
completed an account information form wherein Salazar’s name appeared on the signature line
as an officer of Black Diamon as well as Life Plus,

3, Settling Defendants Misappropriated Customer Funds

28.  The funds of the customers solicited by Salazar for investment with Black

Diamond were deposited elther directly into bank accounts in the name of BDCS controtied by

Individual 1 or into bank accounts in the name of Salazar and/or Life Plus, In the latter case,
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Salazar then either wired the funds directly to bank accounts in the name of BDCS controlled by
Individual 1, or had Individual 1 or agents of Black Diamond create bookkeeping records to
reflect fictitious transfers of funds from Salazar’s Black Diamond trading account to the
customer’s Black Diamond trading acconnt. Funds flowed back from BDCS bank accounts
cither dlrectly to Salazar’s customers oi‘ through banlk accounts in the name of Salazar andfor
Life Plus,

29, Individual I never engaged in any trading of forex on behalf of Black Diamond
customets, In fact, the so-called system developers and the Black Diamond trading platform
never existed. Instead of investing customer funds into a forex trading platform operated by
Black Diamond as promised, Individual 1 misappropriated those funds to pay purported profits
or to return principal to Black Diamond customers, These payments accounted for at least half
of the money brought in to Black Diamond, or approximately $19 milllon,

30,  Individual 1 also used at least $5.8 million in Black Diamond funds for cash
withdrawals or to finance personal expenses for such things us teal ostate purchuses and‘
imprevements, cars and lavish trips, In additioﬁ, individual I used at least $2 million of Black
Diamond customer funds to statt, advettise, and oporate several side businesses, These §ide
businesses were unrelated fo the forex trading purportedly taking place through Black Diamo'nd.

31, Salazar’s customers invested more than $7 million for the purpose of trading
forex through Black Diamond, Of the more than $2 million Salazar recelved directly from
customers, Salazar failed to send to Black Diamond approximately $l .5 million. Instead, she
thade or caused t;) be made booldeeping transactions representing these customer deposits, with
no actual iransfer of funds taking place, keéping the actual funds for her personal use,

Additionally, Salazar received more than $1.9 million in customer funds from Black Diamond,
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 roturned only approximately $600,000 to customers, and kept the remalning approximately $1.3
million for her personal use,
32, Salazar used the approximately $2.8 miflion in misappropriated Black Diamond
customer funds for, among other things, expensive personal tips and the purchase of more than
$400,000 worth of vehicles,

4. Settling Defendants Concealed Their Misappropriation Wlth Tralse Account
Statements and Misrepresen tations

33, ‘To conceal the lack of trading and the misappropristion of customer funds,
Individual 1 cansed to be issued through Salazar and other Black Dismond agents false monthly
account statements to customers consistently showing overwhelmingly positive returns from
their glleged forex trading, In fact, Black Diamond never reported a losing month, Salazar
prepared of reviewsd some or all of these account statements befote issuing them to her
customers, then delivered, ot caused to be deliveted, and/or reported the results of such
statements to her customers. Relying on the consistently profitable monthly account statemens,
Salazars existing customets dectded to remain Invested and, in some cases, invested additional
funds through Salazer, Addltionally, prospectivo customers made the decision to invest in forex
trading through Black Diamond through Salazar after hearing of the consistently pl'éﬁtable
monthly returns to existing customers,

34. By early 2009, Black Diamond and Individual 1 had insufficient funds to continue
paying out customer withdrawal requests, Desplte their lack of trading and lack of funds to meet
customer demands, Black Diamond and Individual | continued to accept, and Salazar contlinued
to send, of caused to be sent, on behalf of her customers, additional funds from cmrent customers

as well as funds from new customors in an apparent effort to keep the fraudulent scheme golng.

10

Case 3:11-cv-00023-RJC-DCK Document 112-1 Filed 12/02/14 Page 10 of 22
Case 3:11-cv-00023-RJC-DCK Document 132 Filed 06/24/15 Page 10 of 22

%




35, OnMarch 19, 2009, Indlvidual 1 sent an email {o Salazar stating that Black
Diamond would be shutting down for restructuring and, thetefore, would be liquidating all
oustomer sccounts. In the emall, Individual 1 also stated that all accounts, including all forex
trading galns, would be paid out. At that point, however, there was only approximately $600,000
remalning in the Black Diamond bank accounts, The alleged plan for restructuring was the first
in a series of excuses created by Individual 1, which weroe ropeated by — and, in some instances,
61‘aftéd with the aid of - Salazar to her customers to explain the failure to retwrn funds to
customers. These excuses included, but wete not iimii.:ed to, claims that: (1) the restruchuring of
Black Diamond required ssveral accounting reviews and multiple paymasters and dccountants
before funds conld be returned; (2) excessive withdrawal requests by customers were causing
delays in the return of funds; (3) a non-existent German liquidity provider by the name of Klaus
was altempting to provide $120 million to Black Diamond to payout custoiners and replace
Black Dismond on the purported platforfn, blllthis alloged transfer of funds was frozen by bank
or regulatoty procedutes; (4) other bank inferventions, such as banking requirements and
restrictions, caused the Black Diamond accounts fo be frozen; and (5) régulatory interventions by
the Federal Rcser've, the Treasury Department and the CFTC, for reasons unrelated to the
operations of Black Diamond, purportedly resulted in the freszing of their funds,

36,  Bven as the excuses prppounded by Individual 1 became more complex and
outrageous, Salazar continued to forward these exouses to her customers as if they were her own
or as {f she had full knowledge of what was alleged tn the excuses, Salazar, for example, made
numerous assurances to her customers that a payout by Black Diamond would oceur, resulting in
a full retwrn to customers of their prineipal and interost flom their Black Diamond investment, In

faot, Salazar, i an instant message exchange with Individual 1 in July 2009, worked with

11
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Individual 1 to draft the excuse they would provide to customets regarding the olosing of Black

Diamond and the unavailability of funds for withdrawals,

37. Desp;}te the complete lack of trading and more than eight months of delays in
returning the unaccounted-for funds, Salazar still claimed to her customers, through at least
Decembet 2009, that their funds would be returned. Throughout this time, Salazar continued to
issue, ot cansed to be issued, to her customers monthly account statements through November
2009 showing profitable resulis from Black Diamond’s alleged forex trading.

5. Séftiing Defendants Continued to Misappropriate Funds Even Wh on They
Kunew Black Diamond Could Not Make Customer Payouts

38.  Even months after Black Diamond was unable to make any customer payouts,

Salazar continued to accept additional funds for investment in Black Diamond and never sent, or

caused to be sent, those funds to Black Diamond for forex trading, Instead, Salazar kept, or ' !
caused to be kept, those funds on deposit in bank accounts and did not inform her customers of
this fact. For example, during the summer of 2009, Salazar took in approximately $130,000 in
customer deposits inteﬁded for the purpose of trading forex through Black Diamond, .Sa}azar
never sent these funds to Black Diamond; instead, the funds were used, among other things, to
pay her personal expenses,

0. Salazar Conirolled Life Plus and Was Its Agent

39.  During the relevant period, Salazar held herself out as the principal of Lift Plus
and was described as the owner of Life Plus in varlous{documents and communications, She
controlled the bank accounts opened and maintalned in the name of Life Plus, She solicited
customers to invest in Life Plus for the purpose of teading forex through Black Diamond. She
was also responsible for the content of the Life Plus account statemenis distributed to Life Plus |

customers,

iz
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P I

T  Salazar Was a Controlling Person of BD Holdings and Was Iis Agent

40, Salazar was a controlling person of BD Holdings through her control of Life Plag,
Salazar signed the joint venture agresment on behalf of Life Plus fo be an edual one-third partner
in BD Holdings,
B. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1, Jurisdiction and Venue

41, This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, 7 i
U.8.C. § 13a-1 (2012), which provides that whenever it shall appear to the Commission that any
person has engaged, Is engaging, or is about to engage In any act or practice constifuting a
violation of any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation, or order promulgated thereunder, the
Commission may bring an actlon in the proper district court of the United States against such . t
person to enjoin such act ot practice, or to enforce compliance with the Act, or any rule, '
reguaiion or order thersunder, |

42,  The Commission has jurisdiction over the forex solicitations and transactions at

{ssue In this action pursuant Seotlons 6o and 2(¢)(2)(C) of the Act, 7 U.8.C. §§ 13a-1 and
2e)(2NC) (2012). _

43, Venue propetly Hes with this Coutt pursuant to Section 6¢(e) of the Act, 7
U.,8.C.§ 13a-1(e) (2012), because during the Relevant Perfod Defendants Salazar and Life Plus
transacted business in this dlstlet and the certain of the transactions, acts, practices, end coutses
of business in violation of the Act ocourred within this District, |

% Violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, 7 U.8.C, §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-
(C) (2012): Fraud in Connection with Forex Transactions

44,  Salazar, Life Plus, and BD Holdings entered Into transactions in forelgn currency

with persons who were not “eligible contract patticipants” as that ferm is defined in Section

13
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la(12)(A)(xi) of the Act, 7U.8.C, § 1a{12)(A)(xi) (2012); therefore, pursuant té Section
2(0){2)(0)(iv) of'the Aoct, 7 US.C, § 2(c)(2)(C)(iv) (2012), Sections 4b{a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, 7

U.8.C. §§ 6b{a)(2)(A)-(C) (2012), apply to Salazar's, Life Plus’s, and BD Holdings’s foreign

. curreney transactions “as [ they were a contract of sale of 4 commodity for future delivery,

45, By the conduot described th paragraphs 19 through 40 above, Salazar, Life Plus,
and BD Holdings cheated or defrauded, or attempted to cheat or defrand, customers or
prospective customers; willfully made or caused to be mads false reports or statements to another
person; willfully deceived or attempted fo decetve customers or prospective customers by,
among other thiﬁgs, knowingly or recllessly (1) fraudulently soliciting eustomers and prospective
customers to trade Torex through Black Diamond; (il) minimtzing and failing to fully disolose the
risks of trading leveraged forex; (i) misrepresenting forex frading activity that purpottedly
oceurred on behalf of their customers, as well as purportod n.'etums the customers would and did
receive on thelt forex investments; {iv) misappropriating customer funds for petsonal use; (v)
failing to disclose that they were misappropriating customer funds; (vi) making and/or causing to
be made and distributing statements to their customers that contained false account values, false
returns on investment and other false information; and (vii) misropresenting that th.ere were
suffictent funds on hand to return all of their customers’ principal, all in violation of Sections
4b(@)(2)A)(C) of the Act, 7U.8.C, §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C) (2012),

46,  Salazar controlled Life Plus and BD Holdings, directly or indirectly, and did not
act in good faith ot knowingly induced, dircctly or Indirectly, Life Plus’s and BD Holdings’s acts
in violation of the Act; therefore, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act, 7 U,8.C, § 13¢(b) (2012),
Salazar is llable for Life Plus’s and BD Holdings's violations of Soctions 4b(2)(2)(A)-(C) of the

Act, 7U.8,C. §§ 6b(@)(2)(A)-(C) (2012),

i4
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47,

The foregoing acts, omissions, and failures of Salazar ocourred within the scope

of her empioyment, office, or agency with Life Plus and BD Holdings; therefore, pursuant to

Section 2(a){1)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) (2012}, and Reguiation 12, 17C.FR. § 1.2

(2013), Life Plus and BD Holdings are each liable for Salazat’s acts, omissions, and failures in

violation of Sectlons 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act, 7 U.8.C. §§ 6b(@)2)(A)-(C) (2012),

48,

Unless restrained and enjoined by this Court, thers is a reasonable likelthood that

Saluzar, Lifo Plus, and BD Holdings will continue to engage in the acts and practices alleged in

the Complaint and in similar acts and practices in violation of the Act,

IV. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

49,

Based upon and in cotmection with the foregoing conduct, pursuant to Section ¢

of the Act, 7 U.8.C. § 13a-1 (2012), Salazat, Life Plus, and BD Holdings are permanently

restrained, enjoined, and prohibited from directly or indirectly violating Sectlons 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C)

of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(@)(2)(A)-(C) (2012),

30,

Sulazat, Life Plus, and BD Holdings are also permanently restrained, enjoined and

prohibited from directly or indirectly:

a, teading on or subject to the rules of any registeted entity (us that torm is

dofined in Section 1a of the Act, 7US.C, § 1a (2012));

b, enteting into any transactions involving commodity futures, options on

commodity futures, commodity optlons (as that term is defined in Regulation 1.3 (hh), 17 CE.R,

§ 1.3(hh) (2012)) (“commodity options™), seourity futures ptoduots, swaps (as that term is

defined in Section 1a(47) of the Act, 7 U,8,C, § 1a(47) (2012}, mnd as further defined by

Commission Regulation 1,3(xxx), 17 C.F.R. § 1.3(&xx) (2013)) (“swaps™), and/or foreign
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ourreney (as described in Sections 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(c)2)(C)({) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(B)
and 2(c)(2)(C)(¥) (2012)) (“forex contracts™) for their own petsonal accounts or for any account
in which they have a direct or Indirect Interest;

¢, having any commodity futwres, options on commodity futures, commodity
options, secutity futures products, swaps, and/or forex contracts traded on their behalf)

d. corﬁml]ing or ditecting the trading for or on behalf of any other person or
ehtity, whether by power of attorney or otherwise, in any account itivolving commodity futures,
options on commodity futures, commodity options, security fiitures produets, swaps and/or forex
- contracts;

8, soliciting, recelving or accepting any funds from any person for the
purpose of purchasing or selling any commodity futures, options on commodity fistures,
commodity options, security futures products, swaps and/or forex contracts;

f. applying for registration or claiming exemption from registration with the
Commission in any capacity, and engaging in any activity 1'equ11'iﬁg such registration ot
exemption from registration with the Commission except aé provided forin 17 CFR. §
4,14(a)(%) (2013); and/or

g acting as a principal (as that term is defined in Regulation 3.1(a),

| 17 C.RR. § 3.1(a) (2013)), agent o1 any other officer or employee of any person (as that torm ls
defined in Sectlon 1a of the Act, 7U.S8.C, § 1a (2012)) registered, exempted from registration or
required io be reglstered with the Commission except as provided for in Regulation 4.14(2)(9),

17 C.RR. § 4.14(2)(9) (2013).
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v, RESTITUTION AND CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY

A, Restitntion

51,  Salazar shall pay restitution ir: the amount of $5,112,687 (“Restitution
Obligation”) in accordance with the criminal order in the matter styled United States v. Deanna
Ray Salazar, Case No, 3:10-cr-00244-RIC-DEC (W.ID, NC),
B, Civil Monetary Penalty

52..  Setitling Defendants shall be jointly and severally liable for, and shall pay, a etvil
monetaty penalty of six million dollfars ($6,000,000), within ten (10) days of the date of entry of
this Order (“CMP Obligation”), plus post-judgment interest, Post—judglnant interest shall accrue
on the CMP Obligation beginning on the date of entry of this Consent Order and shall be
determined by'usiﬁg the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the date of entry of this Consent Order
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961 (2006),

53, Seitling Defendants shall pay their CMP Obligation by electronic funds transfer,
U.8, postal mouéy ordet, cettified cheok, bank cashier's check, or bank money order, If payment
is to be made other than by slectronio funds transfer, then the payment shall be made payable to
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission and sent to the address below:

Commodity Futures Trading Cotmission

Division of Enforcement

ATTN: Accounts Recelvables « AMZ 340

Bemail Box! ¢-AMC-AMZ-AR-CFTC

DOT/RANNMAC

6500 S, MacArthur Blvd,

Oklahoma City, OK 73169

Telephone; (405) 954-5644

54, Ifpayment by electronic funds transfer is chosen, Settling Defendants shall

contact Nikki Gibson ot het successor af the address above to recelve payment instructlons and

shall fully comply with those instructions, Setfling Defendants shall accompany payment of the
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CMP Obligation with a cover letter that identifles the paying Settling Defendant and the name
and doclet nui‘nber of this proceeding. Settling Defendants shall simultaneonsly transmit sopies
of the covet lefter and the form of payment to the Chief Financlal Officer, Commodity Futures
Trading Commission, Three Lafayvette Centre, 1155 21st Strect, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581,

55.  Any acceptance by the Commission of partial payment of Settling Defendants'
CMP Obligation shall not be deemed a waiver of Scitling Defendants” obligation to make fusther
payments pursuant to this Consent Order, or 8 waiver of the Commission's right to seek to
compel payment of any remaining balance,

56, ' Settling Defendants shall not tratisfer, or cause others to transfer, _funds or other
property belonging to Settling Defondants to tho custody, possession, or control of any members
of their family or any other person or entlty for the purpose of concealing such funds from this
Court, the Commission, or any officer appoirted by this Court,

VI, MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

57.  Notice: All notices required té be given by any provision in this Consent Order
shall be sent cerlified mé.il, return receipt requested, as follows:

Notice to Commlssion;

Attention = Director of Enforcement

Commodify Futures Trading Commission

Division of Enforcement

Three Lafayette Center 1155 215t Street, N.W,

Washington, DC 20581
All such notlces to the Commission shall reference the name and docket number of this action,

58,  Change of Address/Phone: Until such time as Seftling Defendants satisfy in full

their Restitution Obligation and CMP Obligation as set forth in this Congent Order, they shall
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provide written notice to the Commission by certified mail of any change to their telephone
number and 'maiilng address within ten (10) calendar days of the change.

59.  Entire Agreement and Amendments¥ This Consent Otder incorporates all of the
terms and conditions of the settlement among the parties hereto to date, Nothing shall serve to
amend or modify this Consent Order in any respect whatsosver, unless: (a) reduced to writing;
(b) signed by all parties hereto; and (¢) approved by order of this Count,

60.  Invalidation: If any provision of'this Consent Order or the application of any
provision ot circumstance is held invalid, then the remalnder of this Consent Order and the
application of the provision to eny other person or ciroumstance shall not be affected bj; the |
holding,

61,  Waiver; The failure of any party to this Consent Order or of any customer at any
titne to require performance of any provision of this Consent Order shall In no manner affect the
right of the party or customer at a later time to enforce the same or any other provision of this
Consent Order. No waiver in one or more instanves of the breach of any provision contained in
this Consent Order shall be deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing walver of such
broach or waiver of the breach of any other provision of this Consent Order,

- 62, Continuing Jurisdiction of this Court: This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this

aotion to ensure compliance with this Consent Order and for alf ather purposes related to this

' aotioh, including any motion by Salazar, Life Plus, and/or BD Holdings to modify, or obtain

relief from, the terms of this Consent Order.
63, Injunetive and Equitable Reliof Provisions: The injunctive and equitable relief
provisions of this Consont Order shall be bipding upon Settling Defendants, upon any person

under thelr authority or control, and upon any person who receives actual notice of this Consent
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Order, by personal seryice, e-nmail, facsimile-or otherwige insofar as he or she is acting in active
concett or participation with Settling Defendaats, |

64,  Authority; Salazar hereby \;varrants that she s the owner and Principal of Life
Plus and that she is duly empoweted to sign and submit this Consent Order on behalf of Life
Plus. Salazar furthor warrants that Life Plus is the Manager of BD Holdings and that, through
her position as owner and Principal of Life Plus, she is duly empowered to sign .and submit this
Consent Order on behalf of BD Holdings,

65.  Counterparts and Facsimile Execution: This Consent Order may be executed in
two ot more counterparts, all of which shall be ‘consiciered one and the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties hereto
and delivered (by facsimile, e-mall, or otherwise) to the other party, it being understood that all
parties need not sign the same cot;nterpal't. Any counterpart or other signature to this Consent
Order that is delivered by any means shall be deemed for all purposes as constituting good and
valid exeeution and delivery by such party of this Consent Order.

66,  Settling Defendants understand that the terms of the Consent Order are
enforceable through contempt proceedings, and that, in any such proceedings they may not
ohallenge the Validity of this Consent Order,

Thera being no just reason for delfay, the Clerk of the Court is hereby directed to enter
this Consemt Order of Permanent Infunction, Civill Mownetary Penalty, and Other Equliable Rellef’

Against Defendants Deanna Soluzar, Life Plus Group, LLC, and BD Holdings, LLC,
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R e R A L A Lt et eamegemye—y TAT it b poniean et e M smmetsweeer 1w aouiensopeen

CONSENTED TO AND APPROVED BY:

Defendants: Plaintiff:

Deanna Salazar Alan Edelman
Commodlty Futnres Trading Commission
l 1155 21% Strest, N.W,
Date: ‘] 14 ILP Washington, 1).C, 20581
' 202-418-5000

202-418-5987 (facsimile)
aedelman@efic.gov

Date; 12/—2‘/22‘“{ |

Life Plus Group, LLC
By Deanna Salazar, Owner & Principal

Date: 7 |N’| M

&W@&W

BD Holdings, LLC
By Deanna Salazar, on behdlf of Life Plys,
LLC, Manager

Date: 7![“"!'%’
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Approved as to form:!

Brifin H. Bigher '
GrayRobinson

1221 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1600

Miami, Flotida 33131

Attorney for Defendants Deanna Salazar and

Life Plus Grou ,LLC/
Date: 7/2(‘ /y
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